

**RFID** reader

Model#: CL7206B

User Manual







#### CONTENTS

CHAPTER I, TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS	5
1.1, PRODUCT FEATURES	
1.2. Main functions & performance	5
1.2.1 Main functions	5
1.2.2 performance parameters	
1.2.3. WORKING ENVIRONMENT	
CHAPTER II, PHYSICAL STRUCTURE	6
2.1 PHYSICAL STRUCTURE	6
2.2 WEIGHT	
2.3 I/O interface & communication interface chart	6
2.3.2 I/O aviation port chart	
2.3.3 LED PANEL DESCRIPTION	
2.4 EXTERNAL CABLE CONNECTION DESCRIPTION	
2.4.1 power supply & communication cable description	
2.4.2 I/O control interface cable description	
2.4.3 External RF cable description	
2.4.5 NETWORK CONNECTION CHART	
CHAPTER III, INSTALLATION	16
3.3 DEVICE CONNECTION	
3.3.1 Connected to power adapter	
3.3.3 Connected with PC	
3.4 How to install the reader	
3.5 INSTALLATION STEPS	
3.5.1 Vertical pole installation	
3.5.2 Horizontal pole installation	

3.6 ACCEPTANCE	
3.6.1 checking physical installation	
3.6.2 checking reader performance	
CHAPTER IV, OPERATION GUIDE	21
4.1 DEMO SOFTWARE FUNCTIONS	
4.2 SOFTWARE ENVIRONMENT	
4.3 DEMO SOFTWARE VERSION NUMBER.	
4.4 TEST DEMO OPERATIONS	
4.4.1 How to connect the reader	
4.4.2 Data display	
4.4.3 Write data	
4.4.4 TCP server /client mode	
4.4.5 Clock setting	
4.4.6 Hopping frequency management	
4.4.7 tag filtering	
4.4.8 Automatic idle configuration	
In main UI, click "configuration" $\rightarrow$ "RFID configuration" $\rightarrow$ automatic idle $\rightarrow$ , dial	log box pop up as per picture
4-18	
4.4.9 GPI/O configuration	
4.4.10 Tool	
V, COMMON FAILURE PHENOMENON	
5.1 DAILY MAINTENANCE	
5.2 COMMON FAILURE ANALYSIS & RESOLUTIONS	
5.3. MAINTENANCE WHEN NOT USED FOR LONG TIME	
CHAPTER VI, PACKAGING, ACCESSORIES, TRANSPORTATION & STORAGE	
6.1 Packaging:	

6.2 Accessories	41
6.3 TRANSPORT REQUIREMENT.	41
6.4 STORAGE REQUIREMENTS	41

#### Chapter I, Technical Specifications

#### 1.1, product features

CL7206B2 is a high performance RFID reader which ingrates reader module & antenna. It complies with ISO18000-6C/6B protocols, working frequency support international main frequency bands: 902MHz ~928MHz, 860MHz ~865MHz, Export power adjustable. This device is featured by long range, high-speed reading, & high accuracy, high sensitivity, strong anti-interference etc.

#### 1.2. Main functions & performance

#### 1.2.1 Main functions

EPC protocol: support ISO18000-6C\6B & EPC C1G2 V1.1 mandatory commands.

- Built-in LINUX operation system.
- Rich communication interface (Ethernet, RS232, RS485)

Built-in circular antenna, support one external antenna.

- 🖕 Support tag data filtering.
- 🛴 Support RSSI: can sense signal strength
- Support RF output power adjusting.
- working mode: FH/HH optional.
- Support antenna inspection function.
- Support online & remote upgrade.
- IO interface: 2 relay input & 2 relay output, wiegand output.

#### 1.2.2 performance parameters

Working frequency: 902MHz  $\sim$ 928MHz, 860MHz $\sim$ 865MHz etc. RF output power (port) :33dBm±1dB (MAX) Output power adjusting: 1 dB step Reading tag range 0~10meters( related with tag, antenna & using environment). Channel bandwidth: <200KHz ☆ ☆ Integrated circular antenna VSWR: ≤1.4:1 Integrated circular antenna gain: ≥8dBi \* RS232 communication rate: 115200bps (default), 19200 bps, 9600bps ☆ RS485 communication rate: 115200bps (default), 19200 bps, 9600bps ☆ Wiegand output support wiegand 66, 34 & 26 types. \* Power supply(power adapter): AC input 100-240V,50-60Hz DC output 24V±1.5V/2.5A

#### 1.2.3. working environment

Working temperature scope:  $-20^{\circ}C \rightarrow +30^{\circ}C$ Working humidity:  $5\% \sim 90\%$ RH (+25°C)

#### Chapter II, Physical structure

#### 2.1 physical structure



Picture 2-1 CL7206B structure chart

Physical size: 290mm×290mm×115mm(accessories not included)

#### 2.2 Weight

2.5kg (accessories not included)

#### 2.3 I/O interface & communication interface chart



Picture 2-2 I/O & communication interface

- 1 power & communication port
- 2 I/O control interface
- 3 Ventilation valve
- 4 antenna port
- 2.3.1 Power supply & communication interface description



#### Picture 2-3 power supply & communication port aviation port number chart

#### Aviation plug signal definitions

PIN	Description	PIN definition
1	Power supply GND	PGND
2	Power supply GND	PGND
3	24V power positive	+24V
4	24V power negative	+24V
5	NC	NC
6	NC	NC
7	NC	NC
8	Ethernet port	TD-
9	Ethernet port	TD+
10	RS232 receiving RXD	RX
11	S	PGND
12	Ethernet port	RD-
13	Ethernet port	RD+
14	RS232 receiving RXD	ТХ

Chart 2-1 Power & communication interface signal definition

#### 2.3.2 I/O aviation port chart



Picture2-4 I/O interface aviation port number chart

I/O aviation port definition as per in chart 2-2:

PIN No.	Description	PIN definition
1	Relay 1 output port	R1
2	Relay 1 output port	L1

3	Relay 2 output port	R2
4	Relay 2 output port	L2
5	Optocoupler 1 external signal input anode	IN1
6	Optocoupler 2 external signal input anode	IN2
7	Optocoupler external signal input cathode	IGND
8	Wiegand output 0	WG0
9	Wiegand output 1	WG1
10	地	AGND
11	地	AGND
12	RS485 signal	485+
13	RS485 signal	485-
14	地	AGND

### 2.3.3 LED panel description



Picture 2-5 LED panel chart

LED panel description as per in chart 2-3:

Chart 2-3 LED definition description

LED Mark	Description	Otatus description	
No.	Description	Status description	
		Means external antenna port successfully	
ANTI		selected	
ANT2	Antenna 2 LED	Means built-in antenna successfully selected	
DWD	Read/write card status	Flickering means entering normal card reading	
PVVR		status.	

#### 2.4 External cable connection description

#### 2.4.1 power supply & communication cable description

Cable Specifications: Black insulated skin with metal screening net, 14 shares inner core, outer diameter 7.8mm, main cable length is 4m, branch cables length are 1m. As shown in below picture, the aviation plug connected with the reader "Power and communication interface," while 14 core lines are for the three different signal path, i.e. "serial cable, DC power cord and network interface cable ", mainly used for power supply and data transmission.





Picture2-7 Power supply & communication aviation plug chart

#### 2.4.2 I/O control interface cable description

Cable Specifications: Black insulating skin with metal screening net, 14 shares inner core, outer diameter 7.8mm, the main cable length is 2.5m, "aviation plug " is connected with reader "I / O control interface", 14 core lines mainly provides two-way optical coupling input port, two-way relay control ports, two Wiegand output, two-way communication port 485. Mainly used for input trigger reading, peripherals switch control, upload card data, and communication functions, see Table 2-4 I / O control aviation seat definition table.



Chart 2-8 I / O control interface cable chart



Chart 2-9 I/O control aviation seat illustration

The other end of the cable is bare and tin thread, can distinguish the functions defined by the color of the cable.

No.	PIN description	PIN Color	Marking number
1	Relay 1 output port	White	6
2	Relay 1 output port	Blue	8
3	Relay 2 output port	White/black	7
4	Relay 2 output port	Blue/black	9
5	Optocoupler 1 external signal	Grov/black	5
	input anode	Gley/black	
6	Optocoupler 2 external signal	Grov	4
	input anode	Gley	
7	Optocoupler external signal input	purple/black	3
	cathode	pulpie/black	
8	Wiegand output 0	purple	2
9	Wiegand output 1	Green/black	1
10	Ground	Green	10
11	Ground	Yellow/black	14
12	RS485 signal	Yellow	13
13	RS485 signal	Red/black	12
14	Ground	Red	11

Chart 2-4 I/O control avaiation seat definition tabl
--

#### 2.4.3 External RF cable description



#### Picture 2-10 RF cable schematic chart

The connector between RF cable & reader is TNC male, the connector between RF cable & antenna is SMA male connector (depending on antenna connector as well). Try to keep the cable length within 5meters, impedance  $50\Omega$ , the insertion loss less than 2dB. Of course, you can choose a high-performance cable, appropriately increase the length, but keep the insertion loss less than 2dB. Note: Too long RF cable or cable poor connection will cause high signal attenuation & poor reader performance.

#### 2.4.4 External antenna description (optional)

This reader has a integrated circular antenna. User can also connect one more external antenna. It is recommended to use the external antenna provided by our company.



Picture 2-11 Circular antenna

## **CLOU** 科陆物联

#### Antenna performance parameters:

Work frequency: 902~928 or 860~865 MHz

Gain: 8 dBic

Maximum VSWR: 1.3:1

Polarization: L Circular Right or left

Input impedence: 50 Ohms

Weight: 2.3lbs

Mechanical size: 10.2" x 10.2" x 1.32"

Antenna Connection: coax pigtail, Rev INC Males

Working temperature: -20°C ~30°C

Lightning protection: DC grounded

Environmental rating: IP54

#### 2.4.5 Network connection chart

Ethernet connection is used for long range high speed connection (within 80meters). Can connect through router or exchanger or PC Ethernet port. Refer to below picture.

## CLOU<sup>\*</sup>科陆物联





#### Chapter III, Installation

#### 3.1. Precautions

In order to ensure normal and stable operation of the equipment and your personal and property safety, before installing CL7206B reader device, please carefully read the following notes.

1. First check whether the outlet is connected to earth ground, and check if the local power supply voltage meet reader voltage requirements.

2. Check if the device is connected tightly and the metal house of the device is connected with ground.

- 3. pay attention to the network cable and serial cable type selection and length restrictions;
- 4. When installing multiple readers, pay attention to reader antenna display way & the minimum distance between the antennas , avoid the situation that interference may affect the reader's performance;
- 5, please test & ensure the reader can work normally before using it.

#### 3.2 Installation conditions

Before installing the reader, please check carefully whether the product is intact, the accessories are complete.

#### 3.3 Device connection

#### 3.3.1 Connected to power adapter

- $\Rightarrow$  Connect power adapter to AC power socket, and the other end to reader power support interface.
- After the circuit is connected, wait for about 20seconds, reader makes two alarming sound and enter into initialization state, after initialization is finished, reader enter into standby mode.

#### 3.3.2 Connect an external antenna and RF cable

 $\gtrsim$  The reader housing has a TNC-type coaxial connector for connecting an external antenna. Please use low-loss RF cable. The connection between the joints should be tightened (for outdoor installation joints please pay attention to water).

☆ reader external antenna is usually placed at outdoor. Its beam coverage is the effective reading range (try to avoid other objects occlusion).

 $\frac{1}{2}$  according to onsite situation, the reader antenna angle should be adjusted to the best condition till when the reading performance reaches its best after testing.

#### 3.3.3 Connected with PC

☆ RS-232 interface is used for short-range communication (less than 10m), can be connected to a PC via the serial port connector for communication.

☆ RJ45 Ethernet port is used for longer range communications (less than 80m), can use extended network cable to connect the PC and RJ45 interface.

#### 3.4 How to install the reader

According to field situation, preliminarily confirm the reading range. According to field read/write testing result, adjust antenna (rotation) angle, to make the reading performance reaches its best. Finally, Fixed the device and the tilt (rotation) angle.

#### 3.5 Installation steps

#### 3.5.1 Vertical pole installation

(1) Align the L-shaped mounting bracket against the holes on bottom of reader housing, use four hexagon socket head cap screws GB70-85 M5 \* 12 for tightening. . Shown in picture 5-1:



Picture 0-1 wall installation

(2) Using two U-bolts and two toothed installation bracket to fix the reader on vertical rod through the L-bracket.

As per illustrated in picture 5-2.

Note: This installation method is suitable for 50mm ~ 100mm diameter vertical pole.



Picture 0-2 Vertical pole installation

#### 3.5.2 Horizontal pole installation

- (1) Align the Align L-shaped mounting bracket against the holes on bottom of reader housing, use four hexagon socket head cap screws GB70-85 M5 \* 12 for tightening. Refer to picture in 5-3:
- (2) Using two U-bolts and two toothed installation bracket to fix the reader on vertical rod through the

L-bracket. As per illustrated in picture 5-3.

Note: This installation method is suitable for 50mm ~ 100mm diameter horizontal pole.



Picture 0-3 Horizontal pole installation

#### 3.6 Acceptance

#### 3.6.1 checking physical installation

Check & ensure the reader is fixed safely;

Check & ensure cables are connected securely.

Check & ensure screws are screwed firmly.

#### 3.6.2 checking reader performance

- $\precsim\,$  check & confirm the reader is working normally;
  - $\, \precsim \,$  check & confirm the reading range is set properly.

## **Chapter IV, Operation Guide**

#### 4.1 Demo software functions

The demo software is for system control, communication mode selection, parameters setting, tag reading/writing & data display etc.

#### 4.2 Software environment

Windows 2000 Service Pack 3, Windows Server 2003, Windows XP Service Pack 2, Windows 7.

Hardware environment

P4/1.7GHzor above, 512M memory or above, 40G hardware disk.

#### 4.3 Demo software version number.

- Demo V1.0.0
- 4.4 Test demo operations

#### 4.4.1 How to connect the reader

#### 4.4.1.1 RS232 connection

After the reader power supply cable & PC communication cable are connected well, open Demo software, the icons on main UI are all in grey color, means reader is not connected. Select communication/connect mode as "RS232 connect", & parameter as "COM?" ("?" means COM No.), communication port as "115200" (default value), click "confirm" button, as in picture 4-1.



🚰 Clou RFID Reader ¥1.0.0		
Connect (C) Configuration (O) Tools (T) Helper (H)		
	0 🕲	
Type EPC TID UserData ReserveData TotalCount	ANT1 ANT2 RSSI	Read/Write Control:
Connect Read	ler:	ANT1 ANT2 ANT3 ANT4 Read Mode: • While Single Tag Type: • 6C Tag 6B Tag
	Parameters:	eadMessage:
	OK	TagCount: 0 ReadCount: 0
		Speed: 0
		ReadTime: 0
		GPI:

Picture 4-1 RS232 connection

When successfully connected, all icons are light, as per in picture 4-2, means RS232 connection success.

Clou RFID Reader V1.0.0	
Connect (C) Configuration (O) Tools (T) Helper (H)	
Type EFC TID UserData ReserveData TotalCount ANT1 ANT2 RSSI	Read/Write Control:
	🗹 ANT 1 📄 ANT 2 📄 ANT 3 📄 ANT 4
	Read Mode:
	• While Osingle
	Tag Type:
	● 6C Tag ─ 6B Tag
	ReadMessage:
	TagCount: 0
	ReadCount: 0
	Speed: 0
	ReadTime: 0
	GPI: 🛛 🗖 🗖
CPU(%) :	0 Cache: 0 NowConn: COM5:115200 • ,;;

Picture 4-2 RS232 connection successful

#### 4.4.1.2 Ethernet port communication connection

Ethernet is used for long range connection(within 80meters), can connect with exchanger, router or PC Ethernet port directly. Choose communication/connect mode as "TCP connection", input the reader IP (default 192.168.1.116), input communication port number (default 9090), click "confirm" button. As per in picture 4-3.

Connect Reader:		
ConnectType:	TCP -	
Parameters:	192.168.1.116:9090	
		OK

Picture4-3 Ethernet communication port

The reader default IP address is write as "192.168.1.116" before ex-factory. If you want to modify that, you can use RS232 connection to set up connection, then check the current IP address. Choose "Configurations"  $\rightarrow$  "Reader configuration", set IP address in the promp-out box "reader setting" under network port.

#### 4.4.1.3 RS485 connection

Choose "485 connection (COM)" in the draw-down list of connection way, choose "COM?" ("?" stands for COM No."), choose communicate rate as "115200", input RS485 address and then click "confirm" button. As per in picture 4-5.

Connect Reader:
ConnectType: RS-485
Parameters: COM5 ▼ 115200 ▼ 1
OK

Picture4-5 485 communication connection

RS485 address default is 1.

RS485 address range is 1~255.

Remarks: after the configuration is changed, please click the button

#### 4.4.1.4 USB connection

In the pull-down menu of reader connection, choose "serial port connection" as communication way, choose " COM?" ("?" stands for USB serial port number detected by PC), choose "115200" (default) as communication rate, click "confirm", as per in picture 4-6.

Connect Reader:		Ţ X
ConnectType:	Serial 🔻	
Parameters:	COM5 - 115200 -	
		OK

Picture4-6 USB connection

nect (C)	Configuration (O) Tools	(T) Helper (H)					
ТВ			G	3			
Туре	EPC	TID	UserData	ReserveData	TotalCount		ead/Write Control:
6C	300833B2DDD9014000000000	E2801105200046DD660B002F			6		
6C	1234	E280110520004513660F002F			6		
6C	300833B2DDD9014000000000	E2801105200045456612002F			5		Read Mode:
6C	300833B2DDD9014000000000	E280110520004512660F002F			5	=	💿 While 📃 Single
6C	300833B2DDD9014000000000	E2801105200046436612002F			6		T T 1
6C	300833B2DDD9014000000000	E2801105200046CA660C002F			5		Tag Type:
6C	300833B2DDD9014000000000	E2801105200046596611002F			6		🖲 6C Tag 🕓 6B Tag
6C	300833B2DDD9014000000000	E28011052000454E6612002F			6		
6C	300833B2DDD9014000000000	E28011052000451E660D002F			6		
6C	300833B2DDD9014000000000	E28011052000464C660C002F			6		ieadMessage:
6C	300833B2DDD9014000000000	E28011052000454D660E002F			6		TagCount, 54
6C	300833B2DDD9014000000000	E28011052000451C660D002F			6		Tageount. 54
6C	300833B2DDD9014000000000	E280110520004651660F002F			6		ReadCount: 177
6C	300833B2DDD9014000000000	E28011052000475D660D002F			6		
6C	300833B2DDD9014000000000	E28011052000484C661D002F			6		Speed: 21 T/S
6C	300833B2DDD9014000000000	E2801105200047096612002F			6		
6C	300833B2DDD9014000000000	E2801105200045516617002F			5		ReadTime: 10 S
6C	300833B2DDD9014000000000	E280110520004541660C002F			6		
6C	300833B2DDD9014000000000	E28011052000464D660C002F			6		GPI: 🔵 🔵 🔵 🔵
6C	300833B2DDD9014000000000	E28011052000474C6614002F			5		
6C	300833B2DDD9014000000000	E2801105200047926611002F			2	-	

#### 4.4.2 Data display

Picture 4-7 data display area parameters definition

Type: Tag type  $6C_{\sim} 6B$ 

EPC: Tag's EPC data, can write /read.

## **CLOU** 科陆物联

TID: Tag's TID data, unique number, read only.

UserData: user data area, read/write.

ReserveData: reserved data area, to store tag password etc.

TotalCount: Total tag reading cycles.

ANT1: No. 1 antenna reading cycles

ANT2: No. 2 antenna reading cycles

RSSI: signal strength

## CLOU<sup>\*</sup>科陆物联

#### 4.4.2.1 Read EPC

Click

button, data display area will show read EPC data.

EPC display as hexadecimal string, length unit is word (1 word =2 bytes = 4 hexadecimal characters). If you want to read user-defined length EPC data, please refer to 4.4.2.3 user-defined read.

#### 4.4.2.2 Read TID

Click button, data display area will show the existing EPC data and TID data.

TID displays as hexadecimal string, length unit is word (1 word =2 bytes = 4 hexadecimal characters). TID default length is 6 words.

If you want to read user-defined length TID data, please refer to 4.4.2.3 user-defined read.

#### 4.4.2.3 User-defined read

Click button, prompt box as in picture 4-8.

Choose "6C tag configuration" for matching reading, you can read matching tags through existing EPC or

#### TID data.

Read TID: choose tag TID data, read mode default as "self-adaptive", reading length unit is word.

Read user area: choose tag user area data, the start address & reading length takes "word" as unit.

Read reserved area: choose tag reserved area data, the start address & reading length takes "word" as

unit.

## CLOU<sup>\*</sup>科陆物联

Edit Custo	m Command:				= ×
6C Tag	6B Tag				
	FilterRead	Type: .lterData(Hex	Mismatching 👻	StartAdd:	0
	🗹 ReadTID	ReadMode:	Adaptive 🔻	ReadLength:	6
4	🗹 ReadUserData	StartAdd:	0	ReadLength:	6
/	🗌 ReadReserve	StartAdd:	0	ReadLength:	6 OK

Picture 4-8 6C tag user-defined configuration

Choose "6B tag configuration", prompt box as in picture 4-9.

Can choose TID data or user data for reading.

Can operate TID match reading.

Indications: you can ignore this function when you are not familiar with the tag protocol.

Edit Custom	Command:		
6C Tag	6B Tag		
		ReadData: 6B T	ID & UserData 🔻
		UserDataStartAdd:	00
		UserDataLength:	0A
		Filter TLD: UU	
			OK
L			

Picture 4-9 6B tag user-defined configuration



#### 4.4.2.4 stop reading

Click button to stop all the read/write operations.

#### 4.4.3 Write data

#### 4.4.3.1 write EPC data

C	lou RFID	Reader ¥1.0.0			
Co	nnect (C)	Configuration (O) Tool	s (T) Helper (H)		
_					
E	»c 📊		user 🚺 🔲	<b>B C</b>	
					Read/Write Control:
	lype	EFL	110	UserData	Keservellata lotallount ANI
	6L	E20090550405013217405FD6	E20034120135F300022E5FD6		
	6C	E2009055040 112917405FE2	E2003412012DF300022E5FE2		Write EPC
	6C	E20090550105012517405FF2	E2003412013AF300022E5FF2		Now SelectTag:
	6C	£20090560407018625801086	E2003412012DF300023010B6		EPC (Hex): E20090550405013217405FD6
	6C	E20090550405013117405FDA	E2003412013EF300022E5FDA		
	6C	E20090554405019417405EDE	E20034120132F300022E5EDE		TID (Hex): E20034120135F300022E5FD6
	6C	E20090550405015917305F69	E2003412012CF300022E5F69		
	6C	E2009055040702362570117D	E2003412013BF3000230117D		Password: 000000 EPC Length (Word): 0
	6C	E2009055040701712580107A	E20034120136F3000230107A		
	6C	E200905504070112256013A0	E2003412012DF300023013A0		EPC Data(Hex): OFOF
	6C	E200905504070199258010EA	E2003412012DF300023010EA		
	6C	E2009055040500981730605D	E20034120132F300022E605D		
	6C	E20090550407020525801102	E20034120133F30002301102		OK OK
	6C	E200905504070189258010C2	E2003412012CF300023010C2		
	6C	E20090550407016925801072	E20034120135F30002301072		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
	6C	E20090550407023425701175	E2003412013CF30002301175		1 1 ReadTime 1 R
	6C	E200905504070167256012C4	E2003412012CF300023012C4		i i neaurime: i s
	6C	E20090550407018325601284	E20034120138F30002301284		<u>5</u> 1 1
	6C	E20090550405027617405D96	E20034120132F300022E5D96		1 1 GPI: ••••
	6C	E200905504070186257010B5	E2003412012DF300023010B5		1 1 -

Picture 4-10 write EPC data

Choose one tag data (which includes TID information), input EPC data (Hexadecimal string), click "confirm".

4.4.3.2 write user data

Click button, pop up dialog box as in picture 4-11.

## CLOU<sup>\*</sup>科陆物联

🎦 Cla	ou RFID	Reader ¥1.0.0			
Conr	nect ( <u>C</u> )	Configuration (O) Tool	s (T) Helper (H)		
EPC			🔬 🖉  😑 <sup>2</sup>	<b>C</b>	8
	Type	EPC	TID	UserData	ReserveData TotalCount ANTI _ Read/Write Control:
Þ	6C	E20090550405013217405FD6	E20034120135F300022E5FD6		
	6C 🗡	E20090550405012917405FE2	E2003412012DF300022E5FE2		Write UserData:
	6C	E20090550405012517405FF2	E2003412013AF300022E5FF2		Now Select Tag:
	6C	E200905504070186258010B6	E2003412012DF300023010B6		EPC (Hex): E20090550405013217405FD6
	6C 🔒	E20090550405013117405FDA	E2003412013EF300022E5FDA		TID (Hex): E20034120135E300022E5ED6
	6C 🕇	E20090550405019417405EDE	E20034120132F300022E5EDE		
	6C	E20090550405015917305F69	E2003412012CF300022E5F69		Password: 000000 Data Length (Word): 0
	6C	E2009055040702362570117D	E2003412013BF3000230117D		
	6C	E2009055040701712580107A	E20034120136F3000230107A		
	6C	E200905504070112256013A0	E2003412012DF300023013A0		User Data(Hex): OFOF
	6C	E200905504070199258010EA	E2003412012DF300023010EA		
	6C	E2009055040500981730605D	E20034120132F300022E605D		
	6C	E20090550407020525801102	E20034120133F30002301102		Х
	6C	E200905504070189258010C2	E2003412012CF300023010C2		2
	6C	E20090550407016925801072	E20034120135F30002301072		Speed: 56 T/S
	6C	E20090550407023425701175	E2003412013CF30002301175		
	6C	E200905504070167256012C4	E2003412012CF300023012C4		1 I Readlime: 1 S
	6C	E20090550407018325601284	E20034120138F30002301284		1 1
	6C	E20090550405027617405D96	E20034120132F300022E5D96		1 I GPI: • • •
	6C	E200905504070186257010B5	E2003412012DF300023010B5		1 1
•			III		
					CPU(%): 31.06% Cache: 0 NowConn: COM5:115200 -

Picture 4-11 write user data

Choose one tag data (which includes TID information), input user data (Hexadecimal string), click "confirm".

#### 4.4.3.3 user-defined definition tag operation

Click butto, pop up dialog box as per picture 4-12:

			PC User		• 🔁 🕻	୯ 🛞					
Type	EPC		TID		UserData	ReserveData	TotalCount	ANT1 🔶	Read/Write	Control:	
6C	E200905504	405013217405F	D6 E200341	20135F300022E5FD6			1	1			
6C	E200905504	405012517405F	F2 E200341	2013AF300022E5FF2			1	1	W ANT	ANIZ ANIS	_
9.	E20090550	CON5:11520	D 6CTag (W	rite/Lock/Destr	roy)						Л—
6C	E20090550	TagMatch:									
6C	E20090550	MatchType:	NoMatch	- Password (H	lev).						
sc	E20090550			1 435801 4 (1							
6C	E20090550	TagData:									
6C	E20090550	EPC:	E200905504	05013217405FD6	TID: E20	034120135F300	022E5FD6				
6C	E20090550	UserData:	0000								
6C	E20090550										4
6C	E20090550	Write	Lock	Destroy							
6C	E20090550	Write Tag:									1
6C	E20090550										
6C	00000000	WritePo	s: EPC	•	Start ADD (H	ex): 0001	PC 🔻				
6C	E20090550			BlockWrite	Writ≏Of	ex): 000000	00		Write		
6C	E20090550			LIOCANTI CU	arregi	en/. 000000					
6C	E20090550										
6C	E20090550										

Picture 4-12 user-defined tag operation

1. choose one tag data;

CLOU<sup>4</sup>科陆物联

- 2. click "user-defined" button;
- 3. Operate write/read/lock operations based on reader protocol.

#### 4.4.4 TCP server /client mode

Open demo main UI, choose "configurations"  $\rightarrow$  "reader configuration"  $\rightarrow$  TCP server, pop up dialog box as per picture 4-13:

## CLOU<sup>\*</sup>科陆物联

Clou RFID Reader ¥1.0.0		
Connect (C) Configuration (O) Tools (T) Hel	per (H)	
		Control ·
Type EPC TID	UserData ReserveData TotalCount ANTI / Leauverite	Control.
	ANTI	
	Reader TCP Server/Client Setting	Mode:
		While 🔵 Single
		Type:
	Server: 9090	6C Tag 🔵 6B Tag
	Gient: 100 100 17	
	9090	
		Count: 31
	Search Set	Count: 24
		Speed: 24 T/S
	Re	adTime.os
	110	aurime. 0 5
	GPI	
٠	m	
	CPU(%): 0.00% Cache:	0 NowConn : COM5:115200::

Picture 4-13 mode setting

When reader is configured as "server" mode, connection is launched by PC; when reader is configured as "client" mode, reader will connect with PC automatically.

#### 4.4.5 Clock setting

In Demo main UI, choose " configuration"→ "Senior"→"reader setting", pop up dialog box as per picture 4-14. In "reader time" area you can check reader current time. If you want to modify reader time, you can make modifications at first and then click "configure" for confirmation.

## CLOU<sup>\*</sup>科陆物联

COM5:115200 配告	
RFID Setting Reader Setting	
Serial Port Setting:	Reader Time:
115200 bps 🗸 Get Set	2015.03.02 15:33:16 Get Set
RJ45 Setting:	Serser/Client:
IP: 192.168.1.118	• Server 9090
Mask: 255.255.255.0 Get Set	O Client 192.168.1.7 9090
Gateway: 192.168.1.1	Get Set
MAC Setting:	RS485 Setting:
20-00-00-00-00 Get Set	RS485 Add: 1 Get Set

Picture4-14 clock display configuration

#### 4.4.6 Hopping frequency management

At main UI, click "configuration"  $\rightarrow$  RFID configuration  $\rightarrow$  Hopping frequency management, a dialog pop up as per picture 4-15.

Frequency Ho	pping	- ×
WorkingBand:	GB, 920~925MHz	▼ SetBand Type: Appoint ▼ Appoint
920, 625 920, 875 921, 125 921, 375 921, 625 921, 875 922, 125 922, 375 922, 625 922, 875 922, 875 923, 125		Prequency List: 920. 625, 920. 875, 921. 125, 921. 375, 921. 625, 9 21. 875, 922. 125, 922. 375, 922. 625, 922. 875, 92 3. 125, 923. 375, 923. 625, 923. 875, 924. 125, 924 . 375
		Set

Picture 4-15 Hopping frequency management

In pull-down list of "working frequency", choose "GB,920-925MHz", click "setting frequency", choose frequency point (as per picture 4-15), click button to import into the box on the right, click "configure"

## CLOU<sup>T</sup>科陆物联

for confirmation; If you want to choose full frenqency hopping, just click . All the frequency points will be displayed in the box, click "configure" for confirmation. If click , all frenqency point in the box will be deleted.

Frequency Ho	pping					₹	×
WorkingBand:	GB, 920 <sup>~</sup> 925MHz GB, 920 <sup>~</sup> 925MHz GB, 840 <sup>~</sup> 845MHz	•	SetBand	Type:	Appoint	•	
920, 625 920, 875 921, 125 921, 375 921, 625 921, 875 922, 125 922, 375 922, 625 922, 875 922, 875 923, 125	GB, 840 <sup>°</sup> 845MHz&93 FCC, 902 <sup>°</sup> 928MHz ETSI, 866 <sup>°</sup> 866MH	20 <sup>~</sup> 925MHz ;z . 3125, 92 . 375	920. 875, 92 22. 125, 922 23. 375, 923. I	1. 125, 921 . 375, 922. 825, 923. 8	. 375, 921. 625, 922. 8 175, 924. 12	625, 9 175, 92 15, 924	
						Set	

Picture4-16 FH selection

Notice: In hopping frequency management, the option "automatic" is for avoiding external signal interference, thus choosing high speed frequency hopping. Default setting is "automatic" as per indicated in picture 4-15.

#### 4.4.7 tag filtering

Open the demo, click "configuration"  $\rightarrow$  "RFID configuration"  $\rightarrow$  "tag filtering", dialog box pop up as per in picture 4-17.

TagFilter				
	Time Filter:	0 ×10ms	RSSI Filter: 0	
			Search	Set

#### Picture4-17 tag filtering

Filtering time: means in an operation period, in designated filtering time, same tag data will be uploaded one time. 0~65535, time unit: 10ms.

RSSI threshold value: when tag RSSI lower than threshold value, tag data won't be uploaded. Will be abandoned.

#### 4.4.8 Automatic idle configuration

In main UI, click "configuration"  $\rightarrow$  "RFID configuration"  $\rightarrow$  automatic idle $\rightarrow$ , dialog box pop up as per picture 4-18.

AutoFree							
	ON/OFF.	088	_	77 77 -			
	UN/UFF:	orr	•	freelime:	0	×1Ums	
					Search		Set
					Search		Set

Picture 4-18 Automatic idle configuration

Automatic idle mode means during reading tags continuously, all antennas didn't identify tags for three polls, reader will enter idle mode for a time for saving power. After idle time is finished, reader enter card reading status automatically.

#### 4.4.9 GPI/O configuration

GPI/O control provide enquiry and setting I/O port status, controlling I/O device functions.

#### **GPI** configuration

In Main UI, choose "configuration"  $\rightarrow$  GPI/O configuration  $\rightarrow$  GPI configuration", pop up dialog box as per picture 4-19. Choose triggering conditions and click "configuration" for confirmation.

GPI Setting	₹   × ]
-GPI Setting:	
Port: 🔽 🕶 Start Flag: Trigger off 👻	
Execution: Single ANT - EPC 👻 🥖	
Stop Flag: Positive edge 🗸	
Search Set	

Picture 4-19 GPI configuration

- Inquiry: inquiry each port triggering parameters.
- Configuration: choose the port to be set and then click "configuration" for confirmation.
- Triggering start condition: choose the mode from pull-down list.
- Triggering execution command: choose the mode from pull-down list.
- Triggering stop condition: choose the mode from pull-down list.
- Remarks: when triggering conditions are satisfied, reader will execute configured command.

#### **GPO** configuration

In main UI, choose "configuration"  $\rightarrow$  "GPI/O configuration"  $\rightarrow$  "GPO configuration", pop up dialog box as per picture 4-20.



GPO Settin	ıg		
	Set GPO:		
		✔1 Low level 👻	
		2 Low level High level	
			Set

Picture 4-20 GPO configuration

CL7206C reader only support two way GPO output, that's, "1" & "2".

After high/low power level modification(setting) is finished, click "configuration" for setting operation.

#### Restore ex-factory default setting

In main UI, choose "configuration"  $\rightarrow$  "restore ex-factory setting", pop up dialog box as per picture 4-22.



Picture 4-22 restore ex-factory setting

Whatever way the reader is connected, when you click "restore ex-factory setting" button, all settings will be restored to ex-factory setting.

#### 4.4.10 Tool

#### Data export

## CLOU<sup>T</sup> 科陆物联

In main UI, choose "tool"  $\rightarrow$  "data export", the following dialog box pops up (picture 4-23), choose the format to be exported.

🚰 Clou RF	FID Reader	¥1.0.0											₹ - <b>□</b> ×	
Connect (	(C) Confi	guration	(0)	Тос	ols (T) Helper (H)									
					Debug On/Off (D)		_							
				(clin	Voice	- 🕞 C	<b>S</b>							
				4	Data Export	CSV (* cov)								
Туре	e EPC	TID	Usei		Soft Undate	Excel (*vlc)		RSSI		-Read/W	frite Con	rol: _		
				-		 Excer( .xis)					· · · · · ·			
										~	ANT1	ANT2	ANT3 ANT4	
											-Read M	de:		
											() Whi	1.	Single	
													Onigre	
											Tag Ty	e:		
											6C	Tag	🔵 6B Tag	
										ReadMe	ssage:			
											Ŭ			
											TagCo	ount:	0	
													Č.	
										J	ReadCo	unt:	0	
											Sp	eed:	0	
											Read	lime:	0	
											GPT.			
L									CPU(%) :	0 Cach	ne: 0 N	owCon	n : COM5:115200 -	
1				_										

Picture 4-23 Data export

All data tag can be exported at format .csv or xls.

#### Software upgrade

The reader supports online upgrade. Software upgrade support Baseband Software Upgrade & application software upgrade(system application software). Choose "Tool"  $\rightarrow$  "software upgrade" $\rightarrow$  "application software". Following dialog pops up (picture 4-24).

Clou Conne	RFID ct (C)	Reader Config	V1.0.0	(O) Tools	s (T) Helper (H	4)							l	₹ - □	
<b>R</b>			0	EPC	se 🖉		90	<b>%</b>							
I	уре	EPC	TID	UserData	ReserveData	TotalCount	ANT1	ANT2	RSSI		R	ead/Write	Control:	ANT3	
					Application Upgrade	of software up	ogr ede			Start		Read	d Mode: While Type: 6C Tag ; ; ; ; ; ; ; ; ; ; ; ; ; ; ; ; ; ; ;	<ul> <li>Single</li> <li>6B Tag</li> <li>0</li> <li>0</li> <li>0</li> <li>0</li> <li>0</li> </ul>	
										CPU(9	6): 0	GPI Cache : (	NowCon	n : COM5:115	200 • ";;

Picture 4-24 Application software upgrade

In the pull-down list of "upgrade file", find the route of .bin upgrade file, click "start upgrade", when the progress bar displays 100% finished, the upgrade is finished and successful. Following dialog pops up, click "confirm" for restart and enable it .

Baseband software upgrade process is same as above.

#### V, Common failure phenomenon

#### 5.1 Daily maintenance

- ☆Check & ensure if the RF connector is fixed firmly
- $\precsim$  Check & ensure the screw that fixes reader & antenna is not loose.
- A Check & ensure the RF cable connection point skin is not peeling off.
- $\gtrsim$  Check & ensure if the power supply cable is connected well.

#### 5.2 Common failure analysis & resolutions

#### **☆Power supply abnormal**

Check if the power supply is in normal status, if the AC power voltage is 100V~240V.

#### ☆ LED not light on when power supply is connected

Check if communication is in normal status.

#### ☆Serial port failed connection

Serial port cable is not connected or connection unstable.

Check if the serial port connection baud rate is correct.

Check if the serial port number is correct.

#### ☆Network connection failure

The reader default IP address is: 192.168.1.116. Ensure PC IP address and reader IP address are in the

same network, for example "192.168.1.XXX" can be connected with reader. If you forgot reader IP address,

you can re-set it through RS232 to reader IP address.

#### $\Rightarrow$ Can not read card

- ♦ Check if RS232 or network cable is connected correctly. Unsecured connection may cause PC command can not be passed to reader.
- $\Diamond$ Check & ensure if the RF connector is fixed firmly or in normal status.
- $\Diamond$  Check & ensure the card is not damaged.

#### $\Rightarrow$ Wrong tag reading/writing

♦ check if the reader type is configured correctly.

 $\Diamond$  check if the tag type and reader is compatible.

 $\Diamond$  check if the tag is in effective reading range.

- $\Diamond$  check if there is EMI between readers or between reader & other device.
- $\Diamond$  Check if tag is damaged.

#### $\Rightarrow$ Reader can not read tag.

- ♦ Check if antenna number is set correctly. If antenna is connected with 1# RF port, then please ensure to select 1# antenna in software interface.
- Check if tag is damaged. If can not get ID number, you can use another reader to read this tag to judge if this tag is damaged. If can not get data area, you need to check if the tag data area is lock. Tags which are locked should be un-locked before any operations.
- ♦ Check if tag is placed in effective reading range.
- ♦ check if there is EMI between readers or between reader & other device.

For the problems which can not be solved locally, please contact CLOU aftersales for repairing.

#### 5.3. Maintenance when not used for long time.

If you don't use the reader for long time, please dis-connect the power supply, remove all cables, pack the reader and accessories suitably, & store in well-ventilated conditions.

Chapter VI, Packaging, accessories, transportation & storage.

#### 6.1 Packaging:

Packaging carton box size: 360 mm×360 mm×350mm

#### 6.2 Accessories

Chart 6-1	Accessories	list	

No.	Name	Material code	unit	Qty	Remarks
1	Customized aviation cable (one for three)	20351000000552	1	unit	标配
2	Customized aviation external IO cable.	20351000000551	1	piece	标配
3	Power adapter 24V/2.5A	2010900000324	1	piece	标配
4	AC power cable	20350000000195	1	piece	标配
5	Network cable	20350000000188	1	piece	标配
6	RS232 connection cable 1800mm	20351000000478	1	piece	标配
7	hexagon socket cahead screwsGB70-85 M5*12	20400000000519	4	piece	标配
8	L shape installation bracket	20411000013135	1	piece	标配
9	hardware kits U shape bracket	20411000013136	2	piece	标配
10	9dBi antenna	20351000000035	1	unit	Optional
11	Antenna feeder line SMA-KTNC-J 50ohm 3meters	20351000000038	1	piece	optional

#### 6.3 Transport requirement.

ightarrow During transport, please ensure the device is not sustain fierce collision, rain or corrosive chemicals.

#### 6.4 Storage requirements

Long time storage should be made in following conditions: Temperature: -40  $^\circ\!C\,\sim$  +85  $^\circ\!C\,;$  Humidity: 5%  $\sim$ 

90%RH;

## DECLARATION OF CONFORMITY

Hereby, Shenzhen Clou IOT Technologies Co.,Ltd. declares that this Integrated Fixed Reader product in compliance with the essential requirements and other relevant provisions of Directive 1999/5/EC. A copy of the Declaration of Conformity can be found an Website: http://www.clouiotech.com/

Testing standards:

EN 60950-1:2006 + A11:2009 +	
A1:2010+A12:2011+A2:2013	
EN 62311:2008	
EN 301 489-1 V1.9.2(2011-09)	
ETSI EN 301 489-3 V1.6.1(2013-08)	
EN 302 208-1 V2.1.1: 2015-02	
EN 302 208-2 V2.1.1: 2015-02	

Manufacturer's Name: Shenzhen Clou IOT Technologies Co.,Ltd.

Integrated Fixed Reader

## Trade Mark: N/A

## Model number: CL7206B

This device was tested for typical body-worn operations. To comply with RF exposure

requirements, a minimum separation distance of 20cm must be maintained between

the user's

body and the handset, including the antenna. Third-party belt-clips, holsters, and

similar

accessories used by this device should not contain any metallic components.

Body-worn

## CLOU<sup>4</sup>科陆物联

accessories that do not meet these requirements may not comply with RF exposure requirements and should be avoided. Use only the supplied or an approved antenna. This device in compliance with the essential requirements and other relevant provisions of Directive 1999/5/EC. All essential radio test suites have been carried out. 1. CAUTION : RISK OF EXPLOSION IF BATTERY IS REPLACED BY AN INCORRECT TYPE. DISPOSE OF USED BATTERIES ACCORDING TO THE INSTRUCTIONS 2. The device complies with RF specifications when the device used at 20mm form your body Care for the environment! Must not be discarded with household waste!

This product contains electrical or electronic components that should be recycled.

Leave the product for recycling at the designated station, e.g.

the local authority's recycling station.

# C E O 700

#### FCC WARNING

This device complies with part 15 of the FCC Rules. Operation is subject to the condition that this device does not cause harmful interference (1) this device may not cause harmful interference, and (2) this device must accept any interference received, including interference that may cause undesired operation.

Any changes or modifications not expressly approved by the party responsible for compliance could void the user's authority to operate the equipment.

NOTE: This equipment has been tested and found to comply with the limits for a Class B digital device, pursuant to Part 15 of the FCC Rules. These limits are designed to provide reasonable protection against harmful interference in a residential installation. This equipment generates, uses and can radiate radio frequency energy and, if not installed and used in accordance with the instructions, may cause harmful interference to radio communications. However, there is no guarantee that interference will not occur in a particular installation.

If this equipment does cause harmful interference to radio or television reception,

which can be determined by turning the equipment off and on, the user is encouraged to try to correct the interference by one or more of the following measures:

-- Reorient or relocate the receiving antenna.

-- Increase the separation between the equipment and receiver.

-- Connect the equipment into an outlet on a circuit different

from that to which the receiver is connected.

-- Consult the dealer or an experienced radio/TV technician for help.

To maintain compliance with FCC's RF Exposure guidelines, This equipment should be installed and operated with minimum distance between 20cm the radiator your body: Use only the supplied antenna.

FCC ID: 2AKAGCLOUIOTCL7206B